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PREFACE

The American West has long held a special fascination for Americans,
Throughout the nineteenth century, Americans rushed to the area for the
plunder of mountainsides, profiting from the plunder, adventures, and the
rugged and unparalleled beauty of the Fockies. Americans today frequent
the West examing both the teeming cities and derelict shanties these
early fortune hunters left behind them. During an examination of the early
West, its people, and its tales, one raises the question as to why some
communities lasted and others faded or died. The investigation of the
viability of any community will be a complex one involving the elements
of its people, its internal structure, and the pertinence of its surround-
ings. This is the study of Gunnison, both an extremely unique town, and

yet, one having the characteristies that any commnity must build in

order to survive.




A good land, a land of brooks
of water, of fountains and depths
that spring out of valleys and hills.

A land wherein thou shalt eat

bread without scarceness, thou
shalt not lack anything in it;
a land whose stones are iron,

and out whose hills thou

mayest dig money.

Deuteronomy VIII: 7.9 !
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In 1853 a small group of men descended cautiously from the mountains
of the Continental Divide, For centuries the Western Slope of Colorado
had known only the elements and the TIndians. These men were to bring the
first of a new era to the rich mountains and the valleys beyond.

Tt was Captain John William Gunnison and his army survey teams who
had entered the Ute domain for the purpose of surveving for a railroad
route through the Rocky Mountains to the Pacific thus opening the area
to white expansion. Gunnison, himself, and several members of his party
were not to return from the expedition. They were killed by a band of
unfriendly Utes but the remainder of the survey team returned with tales
of the riches and beauty of the Western SlopeZ In 184 William Gilpin,
governor of the territory of Colorado, named one of the most beautiful
areas, the Gummison Rivgr and Valley, after his personal friend and the
nan who had first surveyed and made it known to white woi’

The valléy, which was once a favorite pony pasture and racing .~ °*
grounds of the Utes, is broad and 1ush.u Its elevation is approximately
7,500 feet and is surrounded by mountains towering to 14,000 feet.5

Directly north lie the Elk Mountains and forty miles south’the Sawtooth

2S3dney Jockniek, Early Days on the Western of Colorado
(Glorieta, New Mexico: The Rio Grand Press, Inc., 1968), p. 3.

3132 Gungison_Review, October 15, 1881, p. 3.
Mois Borlanﬁ, ot al., Historical Sketeches of Early Gunnisen.

Bulletin of the Colorado State Normal S holl, Vol. V, Noy 3, June 1, 1916,
Pe 25.

. SBatty Wallace, H;§£o;1 With the Hide Off (Denver: Sage Books,
15’po?o -




Mountain., To the west are the Palisades and towering Mt. Mackintosh while
to the east are the Tomichi Valley and Monarch Pass rising to 11,302 f;et.6
Many streams flow into the area, the largest of them bﬁing the Gunnison -
Riv§r~ahd“Tom1chi Cr?ék.7 The climate is mild an the valléy in comparison
to the surrounding mountains. 4An early resident ;xtolling its potential

as a health resort teported the air to be "dry, clear and bracing,” and

the winters to be . . . simply delightful.” The thérmometer often goes
below zéro, but the air is so dry and still, that the cold is not felt.

But little snow falls in the valley around Gunnison. During the past
;inter the snow was never more than a foot deép.

The white man first touchéd th§ aréa in the form of a “cow camp"
attached to the Los Pinos Indian Agency. It was "permanently" established
in the Gunnison Valley in 1871 and was tak;ﬁ over by Alonzo Hartman in
1872. Several years later he quit the agenc& and began raising stock
thus becoming one of the area's first séttlérs.g However, the true
foundér of the e¢ity of Gunnison is ”Proféssor" Sylvester Richardson who
aft?r seeing the area on a geological ?xpedition returned to Denver to
stimulaté inter?st in its agricultural and mineral potential. Richardson

foresmr Gunnison as the "hub if a wheel® with mining regions encireling

6
Wallace, ibid.
TWallace, ibid.

g W8 Mallowney, Gunnison City: The Future Metropolis of the
Western Slope (Gunnison: The Board of Trade of Gunnison City, 1882),
P. 7.

qc. E. Hagie, "Gurmnison in “arly Days,"” The Colorado Magazine,
Vol. VIII, July 1931, p. 121.




it at a #adius of twenty-five to forty miles.lo He gathered about thirty
persons and set out the following spring of 1874 to found Richardson
Colony. There was some fear that the proposed site might be on Ute land
but a survey showed it to be several miles east of the 1868 reservation
line. With the exception of a few indlividuals, by that winter the town
was deserted due to news of strikes at Lake City and Leadville.ll_ In

1877 when Gunnison County was s?parated from Lake County, of which it had
been a part,12 there was another attempt to organize a town company,

but due to lack of interest, it failed. Throughout its early struggles to
survive from 1874.1880, Richardson remained its only constant resident.l3
By 1879, however, the towns that had drawn her original population were
washing out and minerals w@re being discover@d in the Gunnison area.1

On June 5, 1879 a new town company was organized. That winter it split
into two factiﬁns, East and West; neverth?less, the incorporation of
Gunnison was completed on Marech 1, 1880 with F. G. Kubler elected as the
first mayor.l

It was here that the real fate of Gunnison began to be determined.

Her inception was similar to that of multitudes of other mining region

10
Borland, et al., op._cit., p. 10.

11Sy1vester Richardson, "History of Gunnison," The Gunnison Review,

Yia11ace, gop. cit., p. 18.
13Hagi°’ Ope. _Qi_t_c’ Pe 12h.
1uBorl::n')d, et al., op. gi&., p. 19

15Wp11ace, op._cit., p. 19-24.



towns throughout the western United States. Yet, Gunnison's location and
surroungings gave her a uniqueness in the area that contributed to her
viability for nearly a céntury. Her function chnaged but it was always
because of her central location that she prospered. Gunnison experienced
her big "boom™ period during the early 1R80's.16 She was a vital supply
center and touch of civilization fér the sprawling mining eamps surround-
ing her. She was also important to the growing cattle industry in the
valley and to the railroad as a central point from which to branch out
and reach the mountain mining camps and valley stock raisers.

It was mining fever that gave Gunnison its inception and that was
the cause of her early growth and boom. It was fér minig that the railroad,
the business men, and the eastern capitalist came. The Gunnison Review,
August 20, 1881 teported "The question is sometimes asked, 'What is there
to make Gunnison a town?' We answer, 'The surrounding mining camps which
are being opened in every direction.®™7’ Indeed, dozens of little camps
sprang up with the maj#r camps of Pitkin, Gothic, Ruby and Crested Butte
an average of thirty miles distant. The Philadelphia Inquirer stated in an
interview with a traveler through Gunnison ecountry, "™ - - <o n or

These places are all rich mining ecamps and are tributary, which
makes it Gunnison the great supply camp or distributing depot, not
only for Gunnison eounty but for the entire Sen Juan country. fhe

place os growing rnpid}g and it is believed will boast a population
of 10,000 next season.

o Bt Y R A E e T8 e . Kty

 Ja 2t 1

16Bor1and, et al., op. cit., p. 19.

17The Gunnison Review, August 20, 1880, p. 2,

18;9;9., November 6, 1880, p. 1.




Although it never reached such growth, Gunnison did have much of
what mining areas needed. “ith it 13 rivers and creeks, it had abundant
water power for manufacturing and was only a short downhill grade fer
most of the mining communities., <t wes, t*erefere, alse a natural rail
depot, i Gunnison country contains an astonishing variety of minerals.
One source lists over twenty-five in varying degrees of abundance, among
them being: eoal (anthracite, bituminous and coking), copper, fire clay,
gold, granite (used to build Denver capitol building) iron, lead, lime-
stone, marble (of a11 shades and of better quality than Italy's, used to
build the Lincoln Memoriel), slate and tungsten.zo At the National
Mining and Industrial Expoeition in Denver in Aupust of 1882, Gunnison
Ceunty received the first premium for geld and silver and the first and
second premiums for its 1ren m':d"ct'ml.z1 With this abundance of minerals
in such high quality, eitizens and eastern financiers dubbed potential
Gunnison as the future "Second Pittsburgfzz and the "Future Metropelis
of the Western Slope.” 23 They had great hopes for a smelter, iron and
even glass factories but due to personal financial failures, decline ir
the value ér silver and insufficient profit, Gunnison failed to become

the city of black smoke and moneyed prosperity that its early inhabitants

191 ;d.. May 7, 1881, Pe 2e
ZONelsop,gn. cit., p. 4849,

21The ﬁgnnison Eg__g! September 24, 1881, p. 2,

Borland et al., op. cit., p. 29.

ZBHellmey. 9.2-_01&-, P 1.



had dreamed of.zu

Gunnison grew initially due té the mining in the area. The miner-
als br§ught the peéplé, business and money investments but as the mining
industry faded and no 1onper required her banks, stores, rail and potential
industry, Gunnison's location and solid foundation saved her from ghost
town status.

In conjunction with mining in making Gunnison's location important
was the opening of the Ute Reservation. Situated just a few miles east
of the Reservation line, Gunnisén had béen called the "key" to the riches
and vast expanse éf lands that were to be 6pened upon the removal of the
Utes.25 When the Meeker Massacre occurred in September of 1879 and it
was subsequently established that the Utes were té be removed, miners
‘ and homesteaders were jubilant. The Gunnigog_ Review on July 19, 1280
reported that "an army of 25,000 prospectors and miners are in readiness
for a grand march to the Reservation.” The people of Gunnison saw the
opening of the Roservatién as "a great advantago to Gunnison and will
make a big jobbing trade for the Gunnison merchant.” The Ute Reservation
bill passed on July 28, 1882 and the towns of Delta, Montrose and Grand
Junction and surrounding mining areas flourished with Gunnison as the
threshold.26 Occurring in the early 'R0's, this key position helped

boost Gunnison's boom period and bring the attention of the state and

Worian, ot 4V.0 gobnit., vl 2900 5253,

25Mhe Gunnison Review, November 27, 1880, p. 2.

‘ 26Lois Borland, "Ho for the Reservation: Settlement of the Western
Slope,” The Colorado Magazine, Vol. XXIX, Jamary 1952, p. 56-59.




nation to the developing importance of the area.

While the mines and Reservation were of temporary and boom influence,

Gunnison country also had a flourishing stock industry that lent to the
growth and, more importantly, the stabiTity of the city. The cattlemen
were the first to begin to develop the pctential of the Gunnison valley.
The first of the ranchers began their ventures between 1874 and 1876,
about the same time that the first séttinrs under Richardson arrived.
Some, like Alonzo Hartman, Sidney Jocknick and Jamns P. Kelly, began by
running the Ute Reservation "cow camp™ as early as 1872 and later branch-
ing into stock raising on thair an.27 Ano*her of the early ranchers,
W. B. Munson, is eredited with introducing the first Hereford cattle
into the area. From this beginning has daveloped the high grade of
“Gunnison beef” for which the area is well noted. Although the cattle
industry was over shadowed from 1870.1R85 by the mining boom and high
hopes for an 1ron and steel industry, it grew steadily. The growth of
Gunnison was advantageous for both the cattlemen and Gunnison. The
stockmen supplied the town with ample beef and a stable citizenry.
Although many lived out on ranches, they were prominent men in Gunnison's
grnwth bnth in local government, society and as stable business assets
munh too hardy to piek up and leave during the winter or a rough year.
Alonzo Hartman established the first post office in 1876 and remained
the postmaster for many years.

Although the flourishing prosperity of expanding Gunnison was

beneficial to the rancher by providing him a market, supply station and

27Borland, et al., op. cit., p. 45.




refuge for comparative rest and luxuries, ranching was very hard work and
only the strongest remained. fhey experienced such hardships as the bad
winters of 1879.81, loss of stock, and scarcity of hay. The women worked
as well as the men; still, a few hard years showed them that notféﬁly
must most of the whole family work but they must form cooperatives with
the neighboring ranches in the valley. "Cattle pools™ were formed to
protect the stock from loss, theft and predatérs during the months spent
on summer pasture in the high raméte'mount&ins. They also combined

their efforts in harvesting the lush and abundant grass of the valley for
their winter hay supply.28 Thoy prospered as improvements were made, such
as the first thresher which was brought in by a2 rancher in 1887,29 and the
introduction of shipping cattle to the main markets at Denver, Kansas
City, Omaha and Chiecago by rail. The first shipment was made on the Rio
Grande in 1885. Thus as the mining boom faded, the cattlemen kept their
markets alive through expansioh and both their and Gumnison's future -*
stable. It was these saﬁe determined, courageous, and independent re;i-
dents of Gunnison that stabilized and sustained the valley when silver
was demonetized in 1893 and the mining influence gradually disappeared.
Indeed, in 1899, thirty-four of the one hundred largest taxpayers were
ranchers.Bo

The Gunnison County Stockgrowers Association was formed on May' 3o,

alldes, ou. wit., b. Mavr.

ngorland, et al., op._cit., p. 28.

3owallace, op. cit., p. 77-78, 8l.




188“,31 and has been one of the factors contributing towards their
progressive stability and continuity. Originally formed for cooperative
help and protection in dealing with rustling, sheep disease, and natural
calamity, it was an -effective instrument then and continued in an’
expanding capacity. There was 1ittle rustling in thé 1880%s and still
less ever reached a court of law. Thé ranchers in their fight for
survival d;alt with offenders harshly in ordér to protect their interests.
There was substantial initial resentment of any sheep in the area due to
the cattlemants traditional complaint that they ruined the grass. A
group known as the "Night Riders" organized to keep the offenders out of
the valley. One of their night rides 1éft a floek of 5,000 sheep shot--
occasionally the shepherd met the same fate, .32

Time, however, forced the ranchers to adapt their principles as
the creation of the Gunnison National Forest in May 1905 made open range
rights part of the past era. The ranchers were forced to ecut their
herds to conform with grazing proportions and to raise the standard and
quality of their beef to one of the finest in the country. In 1045 a
local rancher named Dan Thornton sold two bulls at the Denver Western
Stockshow for $50,000 apiece. The ranchers were also foresd to diversify
and raiée other stock--sheep, hogs and hérses as they were often more
economical. Because of thé adaptability and stableness of these residents,

large herds of beautiful white faced cattle are still prominent in the

31The Gunnison Daily Re!igg-PPGSS, May 22, 1884, p, 1,

3ZWallace, op. cit., p. 78-79,




valley and have helped to retain Gunnison as a community. Whereas once

rodeos were held in the main streets between rival ranches, the annual
Cattlamanfs Days has replaced them and the ranchers are still prominent

in the area.33

As well as being a supply center for the mining, Reservation, and
cattle interests, Gunnison due to its central location, was a natural
depot for roads and railways. It was in this respect that Gunnison most
nearly fitted Richardsén's concept of it being the hub if the wheel.

The surrounding mining towns and ranches needed a central location for
smelting their ores or for shipping ores and goods to the east. Toll
roads were the first means of transportation to come into existence and
were begun as early as 1875.3u Over thesé roads traveled the horses and
wagons that brought men, goods, and business to Gunnison. The David
Wood Freight Outfitter was located in Gunnison in 1881. It had a large
volume, 500,000 pounds daily and kept its five hundred mules, oxsn and
horses in constant service hauling building materials, ore, fuét, and
goods to and from the mining camps and Gunnison.35 In a second realm of
road transpértation, the first edition of the Gunnison Review reported

that the Barlow and Sanderson Stage Line had just purchased ten lots in

1., p. 79-81.

%Ibid., p. 19:

3B1psd., p. 35.
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Gunnison and planned to pit up the depot and stable very soon.36 For two

years this stage line supplied passenger and mail transportation to

Gurnison. From these, individnals obtained their transportaion to the
outlying mining camps or many stayed in Gunnison.37 Thus, it was necessary
I for most peéplo going to th; Gunnison country to pass through Gunnison
| itself, boosting her business and population.

The freight and stage lines were an integral part of a western town's
infancy, but they were foreced to move further on int§ unsettled frontier
as the town grew and demanded the efficiency and convenience of the rail-

roads The toll roads continued to be important during the huilding of

the railroads into the area as they linked Gunnison to the furthest point
of c&nstruction. The Gunnison News fepérted in late August of 1880, ag
‘ the Denver and Rio Grande had begun earnest and rapid progression, that
th; toll road from Gunnison t§ Buena Vista was near completion thus pro-"
viding the Gunnison area with the shortest route to the functioning rail-
road.38

It was quickly apparent to the rail companies during the summer
of 1880 that the Gunnison boom was in full swing. # railroad to the
central point of Gunnison and some branches to mining towns was essential

and would soon be extended into the Reservation, Gunnison, lying in the

central po}tion of the valley and a proven natural supply center was, of

36The Gunﬁison Review, May 15, 1880, p. 3.

B?qulace, on. _C_!-_t_OQ Pe 3“.
38

The Gunmison News, ‘August-21, 1880, p, 3,
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course, to be the initial goal to reach and was then to be the point from
which to branch out, The race lnt; th; valley wa between the Denver and
Rio Grande and thé South Park-Union Pacific. The latter chésé a shorter
routé and tunneled direetly through a mountain, The completion ;f the
Alpine Tunnel, 1771 feet long and compl&tely shbred with California red-
wﬁsd, was a magnificent engineering accomplishment. The Denver and Rio
Grande reached Gunnison first in August 9, 1881 and the South FPark more

than a year later on Septmeber s 1882.39

The toun was jubilant and held
a great celebration, which lasted all night in the streets of Gunnison, in

honor of the event. The future of the town seemed insured as plans were
nado for the location of the freight yards and round house,uo The narréw
gauge railway was' essential to Gunnison s growth and the surviVal of the
mining community. Its arrival established the importnnce of Gunnison's
central 1ocation and its growing porlln;nc; as a solid commnity was
recognized. The railroad served a vital function at the time, but with
the mining interests fading and new nethods of transportation becoming
more effectiv;, the South Park began phasing out in 1911 and the Denver
and Rio Grande had 01659d by 1955; when the Big Mine at Crested Butte
shut down. During its time, howév;r, it was the safest, fastest, and
most reliable mode of eargo ér passenger transportation (the only train

robbery occured July 14, 1902) and was essential to Gunnison's initial
growth and deve10pement.ul

39”&11&00’ mo m., Pe 65-690
“oThe Gunni son Bﬁﬂﬂ August,13;°1881, p, 2.

ulwallace, gop. cit., p. 69,



13

Aside from Gunnison's surroundings and her central location there
was another factor essential in the consideration Qf her strength and
viability as a ﬁérman;nt cémmunity, that was her internal structure. It
is imperativ; té noté the character of Gunnison's early inhabitante and
the type ;f ecommunity they set out to establish. It was largely in their
futuristie insight that the fate of Gunnison was to lie,

In beginning té study Gunnison's gréwth and internal structure,
§n§ w§u1d requiré some id;a of the size ;f Gunnisbn's pﬁpulation and her
inerease. Richardson reported that only five of the original thirty
célﬁnists were 1;ft after the first winter.uz Thé town grew from 1876 to
1880 until various sources gave the p;pulation during the summer of the

first boom year to be between one and two thousand.“B Due to the transient

population gf prospectors it would have been difficult to have obtained
an accurate estimate, thus the discrepancy. The following year, the
summer of 1881, there was a significant boost in population even before

the entrance of the Denver and Rio Grande simplified transportation.

Reports have the population at between 2,500 and B,SOCJh“ The highest
figure recorded was 5,000 in 1883, many of whom were considered floating

population. With the end of Gunnison's boom era in 1885 the population

uzm Sunnison “eview, June 5, 1880, p. 1.

uBBorland, et al., ép. cit., p. 54’ (Spring of 1880, population 2000)
Wallace, op. ﬁi&.:—p.—ﬁs, (July 10, 1880, population 1,000)
The Sunnison Yemocrat, August 4, 1880, p. 3, (population 882)

“hcborge A, Root, "Gunnison in the Early 'Eighties,” The Colorado
Magazine, Vol. IX, November 1932, p. 205. (Population 3,500).
The Gunnison Review, May 7, 1881, n. 2. (Population 2,500).
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slowly declined to 1,200 §n 1900 and 1,026 in 1910, " During the early
part of the cehtury there seemed 1little to attract people due te the
mining failure. The solid ranching and business interests remained how-
ever, until Gunnison's 1§eation brought to it a new kind of prosperity.
A Today the population is 4,613 (1970 census).

These figures of population alﬁne are not sufficient for under-
standing the c;mmunity, rather th; type of peoplé they represent is most
important. The anniggn __11gg of June 14, 1880 lists Gunnison's popula-
tion as 850 95 of which were women and 75 were children, 48 of that 75
belng of school age. It also credits the town with 101 members of
Gunnison churchos, From the 1lists of arriving people and local news of
established rgsidenta, it appears that most business and professional
men had their families with'them or they soon joined them.‘+6 In addition
there are numerous newspaper comments to that effect. This statement is
from the Gunnison News of October 9, 1880, "Whoever saw so many ehildren
in a new town in Colorado as there is (sic) in Gunnison.'u7 Another
example is from the Gunnison Neview, June 26, 1880, "It 33 surprising to
see so many ladies in West Gunnison. Most of them came lately and felt
somewhat discouraged when they did not have nice houses to ivedin . .G

but this thing has chanEOd-“ua The town quickly saw the necessity for

“SWallace, op. cit., p. 55.
46me Gumnison Review, June 19, 1880, p, 2.

u?The Gunﬁisog News, October 9, 1R80, n. 3.

ha!hg Sunnison Review, Junew 28, 1880, p. 2.
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schools, churehes, and nice houses which their families required and they
were promptly erected., Indeed, it had been intended from its very founding
to be a solid, peaceful town and as Richardson stated "a desirable place
for heads of families to raisé their c:hildrerx."“9 Business began early
to advertise dainty luxuries for the ladies’ consumption and in May of
1880, Mrs. J. W. Rogers happily announced to the Gunnison Review that
she was about to open her dress shop and millinery.50 It was primarily
due to the early presence of families and their demands that Gunnison got
such a2 solid start as a functional community.

The population appeared to be predominately white and Protestant
but according to newspaper reports there were some Italians connected
with the railrﬁad,Si‘some Chinese 'J.av.mdx'ymerx,52 Jewish businessmen53 and
Negroes. In May of 1880 the Qggniﬁén Bgziég carried this statement,
"Only one solitary colored man resides in West Gunnison. He works hard,
keeps bachelor's hall, is intelligent and happy, and votes the Republiean
tiCket-"Sa There was eonsiderable animosity expressed between Republieans
and Democrats, and Past and West Gunnison than in any racial issuwe. The
only questionable factor lies in the point that éf Gunnison's only two

hangings one vietim was an Italian and the other a Negro.ss This may

4

°Ibid., May 22, 1880, ». 1.
301bid., May 29, 1880, p. 3.
,512919., October 29, 1881, p. 2.

5ZIpid., September 25, 1881, p. 2.
53ihig., October 8, 1881, p. 3.
S“Ibig., May 29, 1880, p. 2.

55Wh11ace, op. cit., p. 53. (Other sources say the man was Austrian)
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have been only coincidental, however, as there did not appear to be any

evidence of much raeisl diserimination in newspapers gy texts. The minor-
itj was small and in all probability causéd few incidents,

The leading citizéns were well established professional and business-
men. As county seat and center of mining country there were numerous
lawyers, assayers, and court officiala.56 No one family ran the town
but several dozen of the most successful professional businessmen and
ranchers. The big eastern investors and financiers such as Buck, Lewis
and Moffet lived in the east and only Accasionally visited for business
purposes alone.s7

As the population grew, the structures the residents chose to erect
were of significance. Good housing was important to the people and they
invested heavily in their presence in the city. The growth of the value
of personal property and real estate in Gunnison 4s shown by these figures
proudly displayed in The Gunnison Review of June 25, 18813 1R”7.1R77,
$26,000; 1878 . $66,0005 1879 . $136,000; 1780 _ $619,000; and in
1881, $2 mi1140n, >0

The area surrounding Gurmison held abundant building material.
There was pine, excellent building sandstone, and fire clay nearby

Lumber was an item of severe shortage in the spring of 1880 until the

5623g Gunnison Review, August 7, 1880, p. 3,
Borlama, ot s1., on. sit., p. 25-35.

582h_ Gunni son Review, June 25, 1881, P 25

59 aonn«x. Hallowell Qngni;gn, Cologado Bonanza Country (Denver:
Colorado Museum of Applied Geology and Mineralogy, 1883), p. 50.
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toll roads could be built to freight it in. It ran as high as $65 a
thousand, but nonetheless, often eould not be obtained at any price

because 1t was simply non-existant. Lumber was termed as "hich and scaree"

and "one of Gunnison's most pressing needs.'6 Bui]dings went uwp slowly
i at firet and many lived in tents until 1umber could be obtained in suf.-

fieient quantities. Still, it was only a matter of a 1ittle time until

the material came and meanwhile many beught their land and proceeded to

vait. On May 22, The Gunnison Review reported that over three hundred

lots had been sold in the past six weeke at $75-125 apieee.61 A year

Tatior usinass lots vere to sell for $1.000 to $5,000,62 By July 24,
fifty new buildings were in the process of erection and the sawmill was
turning out 20,000 te 25,000 feet daily. Prices were half what they had
been-63 Indeed, from May 15 to August 15, some twe hundred buildings

were el-ec:‘t.eti.a+ Despite availabllity of brick and stone most people
preferred the faster yet less permanent structures of lumber. In the
1880'g there were from fifteen to twenty frame structures to each briek
one built.65 Several of the frame residences and brick business buildings

are still standing in good condition and in use,

60 _e*:Gunﬁisoe ~§_;:_i_e_w_,‘<“a'y»22,’ 18805 pe: 25 nry o1,

6112;@., May 22, 1880, P 2.
2Mallowney, op. eit., p. 4.

63 The Gunnison N _ggg, July 24, 1880, p. 2.

6“Bor1and et al., gn. cit., p. 23.

. 6SGeorge A, Root, "Geo. A, Root's Absorbing Story of Early Day
) Gunnison"” The Gunnison News-Champion, July 14, 1938,
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Initially, construction on the east and west sites varied due to
differing philosophy and some rivalry., The East s;ction was the original
site with somé ;riginal buildings at the beginning of the 1880 boom period.
Goorge Root, son of the Gunnison ngigx editor, the West section paper,
recalled that in early days the feeling pervaded that those on the aast
were "fashioned from Just a trifle better grade of clay." It did not

66

prevail among the young however as he said social lines were "elastie."
Atfirst there was competition for loecation ;f the railway depots with the
west section getting the Denver and S;uth Fark and the east the Denver
and Rio Grande and building. A June 1880 ‘comment from the Gunnison
Review stated West intended to build scbools and churches which were

more progressive than the saloons and gambling houses of the east side.67
A few weeks later they boastted that there were no dance halls in West
Gunnison and it was not likely that any would be allowed.68 It did not
take 1§ng before they found their way in, however. It was net long
either befére everyone was caught up in the enthusiasm of growing Gannison
and the prejudices and rivalries were OVercome; The August 17, 1880
annigén Review stated, "Both Gunnison and West Gunnison will be one in
the same town if building continues as rapidly as it has during the past
twé ér three ménths." The gap was being rapidly closed by the two hundred
buildings constructed during that time.69 By June of 1881 the Gunnison

66Root "Gunnison in the Early Eiphties," op. eit., p. 201,
67The Gunnison Review, June 26, 1880, p. 2.

681bsd., July 3, 1880, po.2,

Ibid, Augusr %, 1880, p. 3.
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Review confidentially expressed the feeling that east-west discrepancies

had been overcome as nearly all of the gaps had been filled and the main
street was té be cénstructed té run north and séuth;7o Thus, the citizens
proved that they were more concerned with establishing a solid, flourishing
community and had united over petty grievances to achieve that purpose.
Gunnison had a wide variety of businesses and services to support
the needs of the residents and the surréunding country. By Aygust of
1880 West Gunnison reported two doctors, a sal?t school, two assayers,
three attorneys, two painters, an express office and agent, two black-
smiths, five carpenters, ;ne corral, one eoal yard, three dairys, one
lumber yard, one livery, a stageline, tw; hotels, a saloon (™neat and
respectable,” héwever), and a variety ;f stéres including clothing,
furniture, groceries and hardware;7l The east side had many more and
Gunnis;n as a whole ig renérted to have had 175 business establishments
of a varied and permanent nature in 1880.72 By 1885 Gunnison had increased
to five déctors, nineteen lawyers, seven hotels, five restaurants, five
stables, four brickyards, blacksmiths, meat markets, and drugstores,
three breweries, a bank, an épera héuse, seventeen saloons, six churches,
two daily and three wéekly newspapers.73
Séme of these business establishments and facilities are still

Tunctioning in the community and many deserve a closer examination.

791p1g&, June 4, 1881, p. 2.

711 bid., August 7, 1880, p. 3.

72 Malloway, op._cit., p. 4.
Wallagg, °po Cito, Pe 600
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Churches are one of the rpimary evidences of a stable, well balanced
c;mmunity. Céngregatiéns were quickly established during the early years
and buildings followed 1ater. The first to be eetablished was the Metho-
dist Church in the spring of 1880- The Episcopal,followed shortly after
during that summer. The Baptists, Presbyterians, and Catholics formed
congregations in 1881 and the Congregationalists in 1982.7u Constructing
buildings was time consuming and services were often held in business
offices ér éther churches. The first church building was Methodist and
the Episcépals*sharﬁd it until their own was finished. In the same
manner, the Baptists shared their building fér quite s;me time with the
Presbyterians, gain the frontier spirit was displayed by Gurinison
citizens helping each other.75 The one hundred dollars received from the
auction of the first copy of The Gunnison Review was donated as charity to
Gunnison's first church which proved to be the Methodist Church.76
Nﬁtices ;f special meetings, special gatherings, and regular Sunday
services can be found in all of Gunnison's newspapers. Gunnison had to
have been a stable family town to have supported and encouraged the activa
ities and establishment of s; many churches. They began with the town's
inception and are still serving the Gunnis;n community,

Gunnis;n quickly recognized its substantial number of children

and need for a school. In mid-June of 1880 the Gunnison Egzigg reported

P84, v, o8

752Qg Gunnison Review, June 4, 1881, p. 3.

76Ibid., May 22, 1880, p. 2.
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forty-eight children of school age,Z7 and by the end of June announced that
"Miss Maud Kellogg rthe Judge's daughtéz; will open a select school in
West Gunrnison next Wednesday mérning. She will be the first lady that
ever had birch manipulati;n p§wor in éur city.“?8 It was not long, héw-
ever, before this was insufficient for the rapidly grﬁwing populace and
eventually during the béom period three schools were erected at a cost of
$10,000 apiece. Gunnison not only rose to meet the need of her own com-
munity but as céunty seat was the location of the county superintendent
of schbols:?g

The Gunnison community saw even further ahead than providing for
the needs of its present citizens. As early as 1882 editorials ineluded
in the great designs for the future of Gunnison the establishment of a
normal school. This dream was t; become 2 reality when after many years
§f struggle the appropriation was obtained and the State Normal School of
the Western Slope was built, It opened in 1911 and graduated five women
in its first graduating class ;f 1912, 1In 1920 it became a four year
college and later established a Master's program. The college was a great

accomplishment and source of pride for the Gunnison residents-.something

80
long fought for in this forward looking community.,

Any new, expanding community needs a bank to provide captial and °

""Tbid., May 22, 1880, p. 2.

781&&’, JunQ 19' 1880’ po 2.

?9NQ13°§ Ope g&o, Pe ?‘&.

8qullace, op. git., p. 83-84.
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investment potential for the community interest. 4 bank was of even great.
er importance to a mining area with massive amounts of money being ex-
changed. In the summer of 1880 the Bank of Gunnison was organized out of
Denver and establish;d in Gunnison. It boasted a capital of $30,000 and
a surplus of $10,000, appearing té be a solidly féunded bank.81 In 1881,
the Miner's Exchance recaiv;d a federal charter as the 1st National
making it the first national bank to be chartered on the western slope of
Colorado. By June 1883 the ériginal Bank of Gunnison received her feder-
al charter under the name of the Iron National. Finally in 1884 the Iron
National bought the stock and name of the lst National and for thirty
years was Gunnison's sole bank. The red brick building on the corner of
Main and Virginia was a landmark in early Gunnison and remained until

‘ 1964 when a modern building was erected on its site.82 Thus, during a
time of lax banking laws, Gunnison had a stable banking service for the
city and area.

There was another facility that was necessary for Gunnison that
was for her own betterment but not necessarily of direct advantage to the
established citizenry. Gunnison, having a railroad depot and being cen-
trally located, brought many visitors and settlers into the area. Tﬁe
more that could be convinced of Gunnison's prosperity and potential and
therefore enticed to stay or invest the better. Gunnison business inter-

ests attempted to provide travelers with the finest accommodations. In

81Borland, ot al., op. git., p. 25.

. 824a11ace, op. cit., p. 24-25.
Borland, et al., op. git., p. 25.




23

1881 there were four fine hotels--the Tabor, Mullin (formerly knowm as
Cuein), the Gunnison and Red Lion. General Grant stayed at the Cuein
when he ecame through on a hunting and fishing trip in 1880-83
Despite these splendid accommodations it was believed that growing
Gunnison badly needed the opulence which was té take the form of the La
Veta Hotel. The La Veta was a project of the St. Louis capitalist Mr.
J. B. Lewis and was slated to cost $200,000. George Willard of Ohio had
actually besrun the project but had got no farther than basement excavation
and the foundations when, in the spring of 1881 personal financial reverses
caused him to abandon the project. Work ceased until J. B. Lewis took
over construction in August 1882 and ecompleted it in the spring of 1884,
During this pepiod it was referred to as the Lewis House by newspapers
and residents, and everything--furniture, carpets, linens, silver, etc.-
was monogrammed L. He Before the opening, however, the name was changed
by Lewis's request to La Veta, "the vein,™ for both nearby La Veta Pass
and the mining symbolism. Eastern newspapers called it a "peacock among
a lot of mud hens,”su but the citizens believed in the future of the town
as shown in the opening address given at the Grand Opening Ball, In
response to the auestion of why such a grand hotel was erected in such an
undeveloped place the master of ceremonies stated "Wherever iron and coal
has been found in large guantities in a small area . . . there has been

the seat of large manufactories.” The La Veta was built to "accommodate

83Wallace, on. cit., p. 24,7p. 46,

' B“Wallace, OD. gii., Pp. 39-41, 46,
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the class of people who will come here to engage in developing the bound-
less resources of the area."” The structure was indeed an example of
splendor amid the mud. It was the town's largest structure, being one
hundred twenty-five feet square and f;ur stories high. The basement
contained a barber shop, baths and the of¢ices of the Lewis Development
Co. The main floor held a billiards room and lounge, bank, and the
dining and ball rooms, Three stairways and an elevator led up to the

107 sleeping rooms above. The main stairway was of éak and brass and
valued at $6,000. The bar held Colorad’s largest plate pglass mirror,

The massive oak furniture, the velvet and Brusséls carpets were all
espécially made for the hotel and ménégrammed. The épening ball was held
May 22, 1884 and was an oceasion of anticipated festivity for months as
the ladies planned their dresses and flowers, Over 1,500 invitations
were sent out, many to prominent people in major cities throughout the
céuntry. About 500 actually attended the gala and elegant affair which
endéd at dawn. The Gunnison Dajly Review-Press allotted several pages

té the descriptién of the hotel and the evenings events including 2 page
ér description of the ladies dresses. A1l the prominent town names were

85

in evidoncé.
The La Veta opnned Just as the area began its decline, however,
and it never really prospered. It cIOSed for the winter, only épening
on special oceasions such as a New Year's Ball. In 12%9 it was sold
under a deed of trust and passed through a succession of ownerships., Ip

1912, to promote business, the manager began a poliey of serving free

3 ;
Szgg Gunnison Daily Review-Press, May 23, 1884, p, 1-4,
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meals to all guests on any day the sun did not shine in Gunnison. Until
its closing, free meals were served only twenty timés, & fact recorded

in Ripley's "Believe It or Not, " In Sentember 21, 1943 it was sold at a
sheriff's sale for 38,350 and wrecked down to the first floor. adly, it
1s now nothing more than an ugly, squat building with a few tattered
apartments in 1,86 It is unfortunate it could not have been restored and
used as a summer tourist attraction and for its historical value but funds
and interest were lacking at the time.,

"Nature has favéred us with éne of the finest locations in the
céuntry, surraunded by the best mining ecamps in the state, by an inex-
haustible water supply, vast quantities of ;mineralg,, and a few months
hence will bring to our ears the sound of the steam whistle from two reil-
roads. The future of Gunnison 1s indeed bright,™ w37 This portion of the
Qynniggn___zl__ is typical of the Gunnison newspapers promoting and dis.
playing econfidence in their community. A1l are active and vital news-
papers in the campaign for a better Gunnison in a1 facets. They, of
c;urs;, ;ncéuraged circulation amonpg residents to keep them informed on
the vital issues constantly arising in a rapidly growing community and in
addition were significantly instrumental in solieciting eastern investors
and families to eome to Gunnison. They themselves eireulated their news-

papers filled with glowing and sincere prophecies for Gunnison's future

and strongly urged residents to send papers to their friends as well, On

86
Whllaco, op. cit., p. 50,

S?The Gunnison Review, November 6, 1880, p, 2,
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July 31, 1880, the Gunnison News reported that six hundred copies of their
paper alone were sent east Week1Y-88 In this asp;ct the newspapers were
certainly crucial in adVancing ;arly Gunnison's possibilities, but théy
also plaved another role of equal importance. While Gunnison S news-
papers firmly vocalized their beWief in the city s potential and attributes
they also belioved in making it as fine a community as possible which
called for criticism when necessary. They were unafraid of giving the
cémmunity a bad name by sp;aking éut én law and grder, imprévement of
facilities, otc. There was much diseussion and complaint over the esrratic
mail delivery system which was pgreatly improved by 1891.89 There was alse-
much comment during the first summer of the unsatisfactory health facili-
ti;s and the ne;d fér a'héspital which was indéed built later. Citizens
and editors occasiénally commented on séme deplorably violent, rowdy, or
illegal citizen or establiéhment.go Much of Gunnison needed rectifying

and Gunnison's strongest suppérters were the first to recognize it and
attempt a solution. They were interested in a:solid, well-balanced
c;mmunity, not a glérified one. bDecause of these desires the citizens
weré als; corréct in fécognizing Gunnison's viébility due to concerned
residents as well as her 1écation and resources. Remorse and alarm was

expressed over several Eastern newspapers' sensationalism and exagperation:

concerning the area. This caused many disappointments for people traveling

88The ungison New July 31 1880, p. 2.

89The Gunnison Democng&, August 18, 1880, ». 3.

90222 Gunnison News, August 28, 1880, p. 2-3,




27

across the continent only to find one eould not really become rich by
panning for gold in Gunnison's waterworks ditchas.gl

The newspapers began with Gunnison's boom period and followed its
deveIOpment all the way. Gunnison s first newspaper, The Gunnisoniﬁ__g,
began printing in April of 1880. It was started by a wealthy eastern
investor named Col. W. H. F. Hall, He died only a month later and the
paper was taken over by E. A. Bueck, another eastern invostor and the editor
of New York's §pi;;& _£ _hg Times, Their office was located in East
Gunnison.92 The second newspaper's first edition was published May 15,
1880, by Fpank A, Root and Henry C, Olney. th_gngn_ggn,__dlgg located
in West Gunnison, and staunchly Repub]ican, and thenggnniggn ‘News wers
rivals throughout the 18808s. In Augmet 1882, the Exgg Exng;, a supplement
Ar the Gunnigon Egﬂm'g, was cénsondated with it to become the Gunnison
'ngigg‘ﬁ__gg. Durlng the first year it was a weekly newspaper and was
subsenuently expanded to a daily during the second year. The decline of
1884, however, caused it to change from a daily to tri-weekly and three
years later to a weekly, Ag a weekly, though, it prospered and was an
;xc;llent publicatién. In 1891, th? name was changed to the Gunnison
Zzihgn§ Qn nnison N _ggg had mueh the same fata. It merged for a time
in 1881 with the anniggn Uemocrat, a chatty humorous paper which devoted
much time to poking fun at the Republicans and the Gunnison Eggigg. This

was only temporary, but, it later again combined with the People's Champion
in 1904, Throughout its existence it retained its somewhat Democratie

911§id., October 16, 1880, p. 2.

92“811&00’ h. gi_to’ po 290




leanings, Other papers sometimes made an appearance for a few months

but the Gunnison “eview and the Gunnison News were the principal ones.9

Whatever party or sectional rivalries the papers had, they both were pri-
marily interested in the expansion and productivity of their city.

Part of the eity fathers' and leading residents' ambitions were to
establish the community facilities needed by her residents. Much of this
required obtaining donations and investments from the eastern capitalists
as well as their own careful manapgement of public funds. In early 1880
Dobe John, his ox, a sledge, and a barrel comprised the Gunnison water-
works. For a dollar a barrol Dobe John would haul water from the city's
one well. The need was obvious and in 1883 the $200,000 Gunnison Gas
and Water Company, finaneed by St. Louis monev, was completed. Such a
largobystam was not needed at the time but was built to hold Gunnison's
anticipated population and industrial requirements, Fiye hundred horse-
powor was aequired from the Gunnison River in 1889 and publie electricity
in 1893. Health and sanitary conditions as well were much improved by the
waterworks,

The capitalists also invested their time and money in other city
projects. E. A. Buck, The Gunnison News publisher, planted 1,000 shade -
trees in "Sagobrush City" and was instrumental in the erecting of 250

miles of telephone and telegraph lines to surrounding mining towns and

Denver. The 1ines were completed in February 1882 and cost Gunnison

9330!'13!!.’1 .et. al.’ QRO QLE-, p. 5“’57.

»

9“Whllace, gg.;glg., p. 36-38.
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residents ten dollars for telsphone installation and eighty dollars a

year. There were fifty immediate subscribers but by June a third of the

businesses had discarded it as too exnensive. The system operated until
95

1885 when it was discontinued for severel years before it was revived,

With the many timber buildings fire was a severe hazard. Gunnison exper-
ienced its first major fire in June 1991 destroying five business build-
ings valued at $12 000 in the downtoun district. None were insured.
Citizens called for a fire department96 and the Buck Hook and Ladder
Company was organized shortly after under a donation from E. A, Buck.g?
Various other community projects were alsd completed with city and inves.-
tors money, such as the West Gunnison Park with its trees, flowers, and
fishponds,98 and a county hospital.99
In addition to community imprevement projects, eastern investors

attempted to stimulate industry in the area. In December 1882, Moffet of
Joplin, Hissouri built a smelter but abandoned it several years later as
it was too eXpensive to Operate. St, Louis iron tycoon, Benjamin Lewis,
espired to make Gunmison a "Second Pittsburg and rumors of the establish-
ment of and iron and steel foundry caused 1ots to skyrocket from $150 to

$400, and Gunnison threatened Denver as one of Colorado's big cities,

9
5Wa11eoe, op. Sty B. 295 35.
96Ihg Gunnigon Review, Junes 21, 1881, r. 2.

9730r1and et al., op. glt., p. 27.

®rhe Sunnigon Review, July 16, 1871, p. 3.

991bid., July 23, 1881, p. 3.
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but the foundry never camo.loo

The oxamination of Gunnisoﬁ's iﬁternal structura provides evidence
that the facilities, business;s, and investors of early Gunnlson were
concerned with the future of their city and quickly recognized the needs
of a growing community and provided for them. Not only did they give
essential and temporary assistance but, in most cases, provided facilities
ample enough to meet future ﬁ;eds.

As a well organized community and county seat, Gunnison began early
to set high standards of local government. In 1877 when Gunnison was made
a separate county, county commissioners, a judg;, a clerk, a recorder,.

a sheriff, an assessor, a coroner, a justice of the peace, and a treasurer
were appointed. The first elections were held on October 2, 1877 and
Gunnison was officially named the county seat.101 When the eity was
formally organized in 1880, a municiple governmént was immediately
established consisting of a mayor, board of trustees, a recorder, a
treasurer, a town attorney, a town physician, and a marshall.loz A eourt

house was built in 1881,103

and a new, larger, stronger jail begun in the
104
same years. Newspapers carried the reports of court cases while the

eounty court was in session. There were murder and theft ‘trials, of

100B,03and et al., bp. sit., p. 18.
1°1Wa11ace, op. eit., p. 18,
lozﬁallowney, op. cit., p. 4.

}OBThe Gunnison News, May 14, 1881, p. 3.

104The Gunnison Review, October 15, 1881, p. 3.
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course, but many of a lighter vein as well. The quick wit of The Gunnison
Democrat always reported such misdemeanors on a humorous note, "Thos. was
sick and didn't feel well and said he drank froely to drive dull cares
away. Yés, saith the Judge, ‘but $12 for the privilege of driving such
things away in Gunnison. +ol05 With the establishment of the town, and
elaction of officials, came the task of establishing eity ordinancés for
the betterment of a well organized and civilized community, For example,
they forbade immoral bahavior, dress, plays or books, imposéd fines for
cruelty to animals, prohibited drunk or disorderly behavior, the firing
of arms in the city, racing horses or wagons on the streets or the vending
of anything causing illness. A1l businessés were to supply a hitching
rail, a barrel of water in casé of fire, and a sidewalk, There were
many others désigned to keep the peace and order in the town;106

Although Gunnison was never wild, brawling city hy nature as it
boomed and saloons outmmbered aﬁy other business, it too had a consider-
able share éf violenc;. The Gunnison News reported the city's first gun-
fight on May 22, 180 when "Dutch Bil1l" was shot and killed.lo? Thers
wér; occasioﬁal shéoting sprees in true "Hollywood style" and robberies

became freauent with drunk miners as the usual victims. 4t one time

two women accosted a Chinese laundry competitor and the ensuing mob

10570 Gunnison Democrat, September 8, 1880, p, 8,

1°6Zhg Gurnison News, April 24, 1880, p. 2-3,

1071p44., May 22, 1880, pe 3.
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nearly lynched the victim in the excitement. Sheriff Yule saved the

unfortunate man and what could have been a tragedy was humorous reporting

for the “9"5P390r5°108 There were two hanpinggin Gunnison: the first a
lynching and the seccnd an execution. In October of 18R1 a railroad worker
accused of- murder was hung by a mob incited by rail men. The unfortunate
man was dragged from the courthouse to a livery stable sign on Tomichi
Strect and hanged there although he was dead by the time he arrived. The
pnpers labeled it "Horrible Outrage and citizens massed for a law and
order meeting. pa2 Gunnison's only legal execution occured in December
1881, hanging Thomas Coleman, a Negro convicted of marder.2® There was
1ittle note made of it in the local newspapers save a letter to the
editor of 2h§ Gunnison ngicn denouncing the ecapital punishment foe

: Coleman's caseolll The execution, it appears, was not popular among the
townspeople and was thc only one ever to take place in Gunnison.

By 1883 law and crder wac quite lax and campaigns were begun to
rectify the problem. In 1884 Sheriff Shores was elected on a law and
crder platform. He deseribes the situation he helped to overcome in this
way in his memoirs, “All kinds of crimes were taking place and very little
was being done about them. Not only were few outlaws eaptured but those
few who were caught usually broke jail or failed to be convicted.” Most

»iea

1082hg Gunnison Review, September 17, 1871, p. 3.

1097144, October 29, 1821, p. 2-3.

110Wh11ace, op. cit., p. 53.

. 111_'1‘_1_'1_9_ Gunnison Review, December 17, 1861, p. 2
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releases were made under drunk or self defense pleas. During his period
in office from 1884 to 1892, "Doc" Shores saw the judicial and police

system improve under his and e¢ity offivials perserverance.llz Gunnison's

most famous trial was that of Alferd Packer who was convicted to murdering
and eating his companions when they were lost in the mountains in the

winter of 1874. He was given a 1ife sentence in his retrial in Gunnison,ﬁl

in 1886.113

Crimés éf violéﬁce were iﬁfréquent by 1890 due to mor; efficient
law enfércémént, 1;wér populatién, aﬁd thé decline Af the mining area.
Th; type of crim; changéd notably frsm professioﬁal gunfights to the
domestic side. For éxample, an ;nragéd husband "sliced up™ his wife's
léver and thé newspapers commendéd his actiéﬁ as the preservation of his
hom;. A bit of thé 01d Wst atmosphere still pervades in Gunnison, however,
since thé last/barpoom shoot out occured énly nine years ago.lla As the
center of the mining community and thoroughfare for western travel one
would expect Gunnison to have a substantial erime problem It rarely
appeared to be with the local citizens but with th; drunk miners and
transient population. Still, crime never really got out of control in
Gunnison and when it appeared to require stricter measures the citizens

spoke out and saw that they were met. The permanent Gunnison commnity

was stable and as the mining and wilder influence left so did the ma jor

1120.-W.‘Shores, Memoi of 2 Lawman, ed. by Wilson Roekwell
(Denver: Sage Books, 1962), p. 39.

113“:11&00, one. mo, Pe sbc
I
“Iuad., 7. 55




crime problem.

The types of amusements that Guﬁnison's residents participated in
also reveal séme of thé character éf the city. “bundant entertainment
could be found at all ;xtrem;s, from saloon dance halls to church "milk
suppers.” Each of the saloons had a gimmick to attract business.
"Dillions” varied their prégrems from boxing to masquerade balls. The
Atlantic Gardens featured free drinks and lunch at midnight., Kisses
Saloon gave out prizes every half hour and Fat Jacks féatured sacred
music t§ dance to on Sundays. The Red Light Dance Hall was simply lurid
and needed little else té attract its customers. At the épposite extréme
the churches 6ften séongéréd suppérs, sécials, and choir concerts, and
thé schools had plays and prégrams. The town alsé had some elegant soeial
affairs including balls sponséred by various elubs and organizatiéns
such as the Anmual Fireman's Ball, Pééplé frém the surrounding mining
towns as well as Gunnison residents.oftén attended. Ihere was, of course,
the La Veta épening ball and subsequent parties as well. Weddings were
also a time of festivity. Alonzo Har@man's wedding reception in one of
the Gunnison hotels was one of Gunnison's finest parties.115 Gunnison
also had two theatres}l6 one ;f which was Frank Smith's épera house, a
fine two story building. Gégrgé Root recalled the cémmunity band's
humorous'attempts at adding some culture to early Gunnisén the summer

11
of 1880, Nonetheless, all were proud of the organization. 4

115Lois Borland, "Gunnison in the Lurid '80's," The Gunnison News-
Champion, “ugust 12, 1943,

:116222 Gunnison Democrat, Sentember 8, 1880, p. 2,

117George A. Root, "Gunnison in the Larly Eighties," op. eit.,
p. 209, 211,
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Gunnison had numerous clubs and organizations formed by her permanent
residents. These, as well as the churches and theatres, indicated the
emergence éf a permanent and stable community. Among the organizations
wer; the Knight Templars, Free Maséns, 0dd Fellows, Woodsmen of the World,
Royal Neighbors, Equitable Fraternal Union, Order of the Eastern Star, GAR,

DAR, the Women's Relief Corps, and the Chautauqua Reading circle.lls There

were also political organizations and events for both parties. The
Gunnison Review announced the "™Grand Barbecue and Republiean Rally" which
was té take place the féllowing waek.119
The cémmunity also had some éutdoor sports as well. Notices of
upcoming horse races appeared in several newspaper columns. One in July
of 1880 announced a long awaited horse race between two favorites, and a
. purse of $2,800 tc; the wirmer.lzo S5ki races were held in the niéuntains
with representatives éf the surrounding mining f&wns competing. The
course was straight downhill and céntestants wore board skis fram eight
to fourteen feet in length and about féur inches wide. Equipped with
only a toe strap to secure the foot on the ski and one long, wood spike
fér a pole, the men raced down the slépes at speeds over sixty miles per
hour. Winning could bring one a purse of a hundred dollars ér more but

121
now even the most avid ski enthusiast would eringe at the thought.

18Nelson, opy cite, p. 76.

119222 Gunnison Review, October 9, 1880, p. 3.
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Duane Vandenbusche, "Tales of the Gunnison," January 26, 1972
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Another winter sport of Gunnison residents was ice skating on a rink
located near the La Veta.122 A baseball team was formed and there was
abundant hunting and fishing fér the residents in the summer nnnths.123
Gunnison, as the county séat, held the first county fair on October 2 and
3 1885.12a The 1list éf the c;mmunity's leisure time events and sports
sounds like any growing country community. As the boom faded so did the
saloéns, but the sports and activities which first made Gunnison a desir-
able community for early settlers to establish still prevailed in the
téwn. In part, even Gunnisén's amusements, her mountains and games,
clubs and churches, helped to give her continuity as evidenced by their
presence from her first decade of growth to the present.éne.

In spite of all éf Gunnison's early glory aﬁd enthusiastic expecta-
tions, the boom = ended and she began her decline by 1885, Newspapers
throughout the declining period encouraged citizens and local government
to back new industries and smelters, In June 1884, after a series of
Chamber of Commerce meetings, the city offered to donate $25,000 in money
and land to the establishment of a new smelter.lz5 In 1887 hopes were
still pinned on a new mining béom. Newspapers crowed with such state-
ments as, "The next boom will be a Gunnison one," and "the tide has

w126

turned this year. Even the Denver Republican saw new hope for

-

122
Root, op. eit., p. 204,

123The Gunnison Review, May 22, 1880, p. 3.

10 h, a0 ait., v A

125!33 Gunni son R'eview-Presg, June 7, 1884, p. 3.

126Ibid,, October 15, 1887, p. 6.
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Gunnison as a mining community. They stated that Gunnison was "improving"
and that carpenters were building again. They praised Gunnison's location
and resourc;s and ;xpnct;d it to boom again the following summee. That
anticipatnd boom, hnwevnr, nnv;r arrived.l27 Inst;ad thn surroundlng
mines closed by the mid-eighties due to failure to smelt ores satisfactor-
ily on a large volume basis, difficulties in transporting materials from
mining towns to major sourc;s of industry, and a gnneral depression.128

Tnn much mon;y had b;;n ;xchanged and investnd too fast, and the dnop was
in;vitable. It was nnt a Sp;ctacular Yot howevnr, bncause of Gunnisnn's
snundly built community and diversity of purpos;. The ranches continued

as a valuable and stabln busin;ss in th; valley nnd tourists and snttlers
still passnd throuzh to néw areas of expansion. Just as the ranches
adapted their stock raising methods to the changes of progress, so did the
city of Gunnison. The thrift and substantial class that comprised
Gunnison's stable residents during her boom era remained and the town that
was formed in the wake of “Gunnison the Fahulous consisted of the elements

129

that comprise a permanent community.

The mining, rail, cattle, 1nvestors, 1ocation, public facilities,

and solid business and professional community contributed to Gunnison's
establishment and early growth. The city was widely enough diversified

s0 that when some of these other factors diminished, the community was

127Ibid., October 22, 1887, p. 6.

28Wallace, op. cit., p. 59,

129Borland et al., op. cit., p. 10.
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durable enough to last until other areas of business interest opened or
expanded. Gunnison's true wealth lay got in her minerals but in her
1ocati§n and her residents. It took time to change the emphasis from a
céﬁtral mining and industrial location to recognition of its natural asset
as a r;creation area. Hunting and fishing have always heen porular sports
in the Gunnison area and now the highways are crowded with in andréut-of-
stat; ;nthusiasts during th; seasons. Camping is popular througbnut the
Weet and the vallev and mountalns have many beautiful sites, The creation
of the Taylor “eservoir has boosted recreation with boating, fishing, and
camping available in the area. Tourists pass through during the summer
months and although Gunnison is not a completely tourist centered town,
ghost town looking and the mountain beauty draw them to this area. With
the increasing pépularity of winter sports, the valley draws downhill
and cross-country skiers and snowmobilers during the winter months.
Crestéd Butte has one of the better ski areas in the state. The area
do;s not have the erowded popularity of the big resorts, but still draws
enough people to support business and yet, leave it unconpeqted enough
for the enjoyment of the residents and those who travel into the area.
It is » precarious balance that is hoped will be retained The sports and
beauty have helped to ret~in the ecollepe and its personnel; an important
business for the comminity which those farsighted early residents workéd
to obtain.

Gunrison was fortunate in having determined and futuristic residents
during her éarly gr;wth. They provided her with enduring business and

public facilities that remain as do the viable, stable citizens trat

first established Gunnison. It is up to the future, however, to see
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whether or not these residents can protect the guality of life in their
valley from over population and pollution. Gunnison's loeation in acces-
sible yet remote beauty, first brought settlers to the area and continued

to retain their population, but unless care is taken tha cuality ean

easily be destroyed as much of the splendor of Colorado has been.




BIBLIOGRAPHY

Borland, Lois. ™Gunnison in the Lurid '80°s.” The Gunnison News-Champion.
August 12, 1943,

. "Ho for the Reservation; Settlemen of the Western Slope."
The Colorado Mapazine, XXIX (Jamuary 1952), p. 56-75.

Borland, Lois, et al. Historical Sketches of Early Gunnison. Bulletin
of the Colorado State Normal School. V, No. 3, (June 1, 1016).

Hagie, C. E, "Gunnison in Barly Days.” The Colorado Mapazine, VIII, No,
4, (July 1931), 121-129.

Hollowell, John K. Gunnison, Colorado's Bonanza Country. Denver:
Myseum of Applied Geology and Mineralogy, 1883.

Jocknick, Sidney. Early Days on the Western Slope of Colorado. Glorieta,
New Mexico: The Rio Grande Press, Inc., 1968,

Mallowney, M. G. Gunnison City: The Future Metropolis of the Western
Slope. Gunnison: The Board of Trade of Gunnison City, 1882,

Mumey, Nolie. ™John Williams Gunnison: Centenary of His survey and Tragie
Death, (1853-1953)¢™ The Colorado Magazine, XXXI (January 1954),
19-22.

Nelsen, A. P./Gunnison County Colorado. Pitkin, Colorado, 19167,

Phillips, J. E. "Gunnison-Then and Now-As Described by Veteran Newspaper
Man of the '80's,” The Gunnison News-Champion, July 14, 1938.

Root, George A, “Gunnison in the Early Eiphties.” The Colorado Magazire,
IX, No. 6, (Noveber 1932), 201.203,

. "Geo. A. Root's Absorbing Story of Early Day Gunnison,” The
Gunnison News-Champion, July 14, 1938,

Shores, C. W. Memoirs of a lawman. Edited by Wilson Rockwell. Denver:
Sage Books, 1962,

Wallace, Betty. History With the Hide Off. Denver: Sage Books, 106k,
$he Gunnison Demoerat, August 4, 1880 - May 11, 1881,
The Gunnison News, April 24, 1880 - June 11, 1881,

The Gunnison News-Demoerat, June 17, 1881 - August 1, 18R2.

The Gunnison Review, May 15, 1880 - August 5, 1882.




L1

Gunnison Review-Press, August 17, 1883 - November 10, 884: October 13,
1887 . July 25, 1889,

Vandenbusche, Duane. "T-les of the Gunnison.” January 26, 1972, (lecture
given at Western State College; Dr. Vandenbusche is a professor in
the History Department of the college).

Wallace, Betty. Gunnison: A Short Illustrated History. Daenver: Sape
Books, 1964,




ey

% PO,
t~s: (3 “\'~ whe, :"\"\ 1*‘ OB

R )’4'
. oot Lo hass I

Loy amy
DT

)
A
17
]
l
]

s088lI
NOSINNNO

el abis ] |, |

g o
- ‘ 4

'
“a

‘e f' "o
Pouleomd v, ’ A [ Wil

I e, ie | e ;‘
[__mjj,%‘::vl i g |

“ <
T «r‘—q o N e

0L i__'nC]L\
1 |
| !

E

¥

s re N il

Vil

o e o rx;:]u,u [ m—— e

G}
4
&

;’ I RORE o PR FC
R Bl D= S
B e L_ﬁ;l

]
r_——)
]
"4
N
£ '
‘J 2
f};,g
o
Y
TAY 5
‘ 1}':f
3 vfﬂ
e
L
3
AW
AV
AV

C P e
P [ [
|
Toorede 2 < Sl —
{ "L B
<,
% .
__' | x
| p 1'—“-'-' - ‘*1 BRI aete o e by 7 ‘~
l l ' i
% o
: Mrua ST i S T w %
] |
1] - % F\::
——bolend ST {
ot '
‘ ’ ‘ ., %
Adome ST ~. B
%
O 55 Py <
(P} ¥ Ry 5'{‘
L SRt e
D N A L S SR G R ORI

@ource: Betty Wallace - Gunnison; A Short Illustrated -History.)




PRSES—
oy ~
-~

|
\ e
® \ GUNNISON COUNTY, ,
233 1
g 8 1 COLORADO.
Lo\ 41 . 3 :
R J Railroad Lines, Automobile Routes
P TN ' and County Roads.
N
| ¢ :
B ‘ e g /
3 e
e 5
§2 ’
¢ y
o
5. e
.
.m;.: i
i
“The Rainbow Route™
of the National Auto Road System \f
Connecting from the Fost with ':7-5
The Midland Trail and Lincoln llu.h\\u\
nt Salida, Colorado, % ; .E"
and then vin Cochetopn Pans and Monarch Ponn 7 i
o Gunninon, Colorndo,
! then by way of Montrone and Greand Junction S i
IS 1 L RN sl 1o Solt Loake City and the Pacific Connt, “,r’.v
o L T o - ammmt The Raintow Noute  wwon Railroad Lines
— ounty Anto Hosde m— (ounty Honda .

' | (Spurce: A. P. Nelson - Gurinison County Colorado)

. Lo TR :
T A R T TP N B e N R e T T R TP T gy

& g 2o o Lo > ) Fhikide




IT'S A PRIVILEGE
AND PLEASURE

to live in
GUNNISON,COLORADO

where we have perpetual
“al( sunshine, pure air and
water

LaVeta Hotelﬂ'

GIVES EACH GUEST
A FREE MEAL OR ROOM

every day the sun
fails to shine m

GUNNISON -

WE HAD SUNSHINE IN
GUNNISON, COLO.

Every day in 1912

ET I Every day in 1913
A O E exceps Dec. 41h

: Every day in 1914

eacert Dec 181k

GUNNISON, COLO. Ev;v; Id;y ;n;‘;ls
LEADING HOSTELRY ON WESTERN SLOPE 'y luniniuru’
THE OVER.SUNDAY HEADQUARTERS J. H. HOWLAND :

FOR DRUMMERS AND OTHER TRAVELERS Proprictor

® | THE FirsT NATIONAL BANK

Esablished 1882 GUNNISON, COLORADO Member of the Fedesal Reserve Bank
Capital, Surplus and Undivided Profits, $100,000.00

y .
F i . ; ~ gy A
OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS :
S. P. SPENCER, Prewetur
> A. HARTMAN, Vice Preciens
JOHN A. STEELE, \ ie Prendent p
: J. J. MILLER, Cashict 4

GUY M. ROSE, Auistant Cashier
WIIL.LIAM SNYDER, Director
H. M. WEBSTER, Director

This Bank solicits your business.
/

Every effort 1s made by courteous ,

personal attention to give our cus-

T - ———

tomers prompt and effcient service

Gunnison County Library

(Source: A. P. Nelson - Gunnison County Colorado)

\h 387 N. Wisconsin ,
b t MW . - °meg-&1w?-2-0———
> R ok By et RN - L S BRI Y S Rk e o5 0
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